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kalacha lzvet IV Hospitol (County (iovernmenl of Marcabit)
Aruual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Oh June 2022

l. Acronyms & GlossarY of Terms

Provide a list of all acronym.s and glossary of terms used in lhe preparation of this report

e.g.

CSR Corporate Social ResPonsibilitY

Occupational Health & Safety Act

Public Financial Management Act

Medical Superintendent

Key management Personnel who

responsibility in the HosPital.

OSHA

PFMA

MED SUP

Fiduciary Management - have financial

iilPage
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IY Hospital (County Govvrnment of Manabit)

rt and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3F June 2022

Hospital Information and Management

Background information

ub - county Hospital is a level 4 hospital established under gazette noticp number 121

rciled in Marsabit County under the health Department. The hospital is supposed to be
a Board of Management., which is yet to be established fully, the process has been
proposed names given to the relevant authorities.

by

Principal Activities

OBJECTIVE;
To increase the availability, accessibility, and skilled attendance during p,regtmcy,
child birth, and postpartum period to all Kenyans in the hard to reach areas of
Kenya.

VISION;
To ensure, efficiency and high quality m&ternal, neonatal, child health senrices, that
is accessible, equitable affordable to every Kenyan.

Key Management

The hospital's management is under the following key organs
- County departnent ofhealth
- Board of Managernent
- Accounting Officer/ Medical Superintendent
- Management
- Others (hospital managemenl team)
Fiduciary Management

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended
30u June 2022 and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

I.

g

Accounting offi cer (CEo)Medical
Superintendent/

BONAYA ADANO

5 KENNETH MURETHI
4 Hospital Admi nistrator

5 Nursing oflicer in charge JOSEPH I,OKIDONGOI

ge

I

t

MISSION;
To ensure high quality integrated, promotive, preventive, curative and
rchabilitativc, maternal, neonate, and child health service to all Kenyans.

I

2. Head offinance KAME BASHUNA

Head of clinical service

BETWEL ROTICH

P



kalacha l-ovl IV Hospital (County Governmcnt of Manabit)
Annual Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3F June 2022 I

Qnclude all positiom regarded as top management in your hospital)

(e) FiduciaryOversightArrangements;
All the head of departs are involved in management of the hospitel;

They include:
. Hospital CEO
. Hospital administration
. Head of clinical service
. Head of the nursing service
! Head of radiology
. Head of nutrition
. Head of medical laboratory
. Biomed department
, Community Unit

(f)

[Here, provide a high-level description of the keyfiduciary oversight aruangements
covering (sayl)
- Clinical Research and Standards Committee.
- Audit committee
- Risk Commitee
- County Assembly
- Parliamentary committees

r Other oversight committees
Key Hotpital Information and Management (continued)

(g) Hospitel Headquarters

P.O. Box 342-60500
Marsabit, KENYA

(h) Hospital Contacts

(i) Eospital Bankers
o Kenya commercial bank
o Equity bank limited

I

Independent Auditors
Auditor General
Offrce of Auditor General

ivlPage

Telephone: (+254) 7 23 5 85 53 5

E-mail: kalachahospial@gmail.com.
Website: www.go.ke



IY Hospital (County Governmenl of Manabit)
and F i na nc ial Slate me nts for The Year Endcd 3Ah June 2022

Anniversary Towers, Institute WaY

P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

Principal kgal Adviser

The Attomey General
State Law Oflice
Harambce Avenue
P.O. Box 401l2
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

County AttorneY

P.O. Box. 384 0 60500
Marsabit" Kenya

I
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kalacha l-ewl IV Hospital (County Govvrrutent of Manabit)
Annual Report and Financial Statements lor The Year Ended 3Ah June 2022

IL The Board of Management
The hospital operated without a board financial the financial year ended 30 June2022

I
I

I

Director 1

(Insert each Director's passport-size

photo and ndme, and key

profess ioty'academ i c q ual ifi cat ions)

Provide a concise description ofeach

Director's age, key qualifications, and

work experiance. Indicate whether the

director is independent oran executive

director and which committee of the

Board the director chairs where

applicable. Indicate whether the director is

independent and or whether altemate.

Director 2

J Director 3

4 Director 4/Altemate

5 MED SUP

6 Hospital Secretary

Indicate whether the secretary is a

member of ICS as required under the

Mwongozo code in addition to their other

details.

vilPage
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hc fY Hospitol (CouW Govurnnenl of Mawbil)
alR rt and Flnancial Statementsfo r The Year Ended 3F June 2022

Man ent Teamm- Ke

Indicate the main area of

responsibility - without

details

(lnsert each key manager's pqssport-size photo and

name, and key profess ion/academic qualificat ions)

Administration

- Bachelor of Arts inAdano Bonaya

Psychology

I

Supewision

JosephLokidongoi - Bacheloro

I
p

^

f Nursing

Accountability

- Bactrelor of Business
Administration (Accounting)

Kame Bashuna

ffi
I

7

(Note: The Med suP and the HosPita

' Board' and'Management'.)

ll feature both under theI Secretary wi

n

Managerreot DeteitsRef

lP



holeclu Iad IV Hospltal (County Gowrnnunt ofManabtt)
Anrutal Report and Flnanclal Statemenls for The Year Ended 3fr June 2022

ry. Cheirman'sStatement

One- fwo pages

(Under this section, the Chairman of the Board of Management will give a brief highlight of the

kcy odivities duringlhe year. successes consolidated challenges be and the wayfontard

or fimre outlookfor the hospital). (The report should be signed by the chairman of the gweraing

body.)

Therc was no boad in place daing tlrcfinancial yut endcd 30 Junc 2022.

Name

Cheirman to the Board

il
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(County Gorryrnmenl ofManabit)
Statemenls The Year Ended 3Ah June ,022f

rt of The Chief Executive Oflicer

-county referral hospital is a public hospital fully funded by county government'

ial year 2)2ll2)22,given the fact that the prolonged drought affected a number of

ects, all the government efforts were directed towards drought mitigation to reduce

impact on both people and their livestock's therefore, there were no new proJects

d that, the government relentlessly maintained and carried out normal day to day

the hospital. In this financial year the cost of sharing fees also shrunk by a big margin

our client's charges were either cancelled or waived.

poor financial performance of the hospital within this period. It is clear to us the

t, that depending entirely on cost sharing alone, might not be a prudent thing to. There

in future we might need look beyond the horizon in terms of incoming generattng

the hospital

..t.............

Bonaya Adano

lacha l,evel IV HosPital

e

I

IS

and Financial

within the hospital in this financial year

P a



kalacha Levul IV Hospital (County Government of Manabit)
Annual Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Oh June 2022

VL Stetement of Performance Against Predetermined Objectives

Kalacha sub coumy referral hospital, is a government hospital, situated in North Hon sub county,

maikona ward, Marsabit county. It is based along the edge of Chalbi desert, l60lans away from

marsabit county headquarters. Kalacha hospital is the first hospital of its kind established in North

Horr constituency since independence.

The journey of kalacha hospital was one of the most tricking one, it started as a smatl dispensary,

manned by a nurse, a public officer, and 3 support staff.

In 2010 through stimulus package the dispensary was a up graded to model health centre. At that

time the health centre increased its services and started outreach services to reach the unreachable.

In 2016 the hospital was once again elevated to a fully-fledged hospital and became the only

hospital to have existed since independence. Since then the hospital has grown in different aspects

and increased is service points.

Before this hospital was established the community in north horr sub county depended on few

health care facilities which are sporadically placed in in vast areas of north horr sub county. Most

frequcntly the community depended on hospital in Marsabit, Meru, Nanyuki and Nairobi for

spccialir mcdical care and for emergency, which frequently result in loss of life, espccially in the

cases of maternal emergencies.

The most daring thing in this process of seeking for health care is the distance from the hard to

reach villages and around and within the trading centres. For instance, Marsabit to north hon is

200kms and Marsabit to Meru is about 400kms, this is unimaginable distance for any emergency

and worse for mothers in labour complication or emergency. Therefore, looking at this s€nario

kalacba hospital came has a gift of life safety for the communities within and without this zone. It

is the best gift the goverilnent has given to its people.

Today the hospital has one of the best equipment's, it has theatre, imaging service, laboratory

service it has in patient services, out patients service, nutritional service, outreach service, referral

servlce

Marry lifc's have been saved, pain oflong-distance referrals has been reduced.

At the beginning hospital had 3 nurses, one clinical officer, one public health oflicer, and 4 support

staffs, today it has 40 qualified staffs and 13 support staffs.

As it stands now the hospital has good infrastructure, which includes one general ward, maternity

wing, delivery room, operating theatre, x-ray block, laboratory, outpatient block, cancer centre, l0

xlPage
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is two generators houses( one temporary), a borehole and one shallow well, a

plant, and one functional Ambulance

a number of challenges faced by the hospital, which includes;

uate staffing

financial availability

infrastructure (Admini strati on Block, morgue, ward, laundry,)

there is lack of inadequate staffs, all our reports are still done manually

power, we are yet to be connected by KPLC among others

pillars

b cotmty Referral hospital has 2 strategic pillars/ themes/issues and objectives within

Strategic Plan for the FY 2O22FY 2023. These strategic themes are as follows:

. Pillar /theme/issue l: Heslth Service Delivery

o Pillar/theme/issue 2: Referral Service Strategy

lnspital develops its annual work plans based on the above 2 Themes. Assessment of the

i13 performance targets set for the FY 2O2ll2O22 period for its 2 strategic themes, as

in the diagram below:

e

1

self contains staff houses, 4 two bed rooms self contains houses, and 7 single rooms

performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The hospilal
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this section therefore, the management should include performance against the stralegic

s of the organisation- The man<tgement should outline the strategic Pillars' activities

their achievement and outputs under each strategic pillar. The organi-sation should alsa

outline how they have tied achievements to performance contracts)

Incrcascd

in drc of orPaticnts

Attondance

-Ensure ort is ftrIIY

oovorod and

patients attended

tJO.

-All chil&en are

6rlly covercd

-AIl cliens are

attendcd to

Ensrc all cticttt

secking this

service ars scrvod

OuPaicot attc"dcd 2417

lmmunization coverage

AntenataUpostnatal

Hcdtb scrvice

All referrals wer€

done within &c

stipulated trme

frame.

All emergency

scrvic€ at Ettcndcd

to within 15-20

minutcs stiplated

the

Timely referral services

strs

oqe'
lowa
brie

ilil

(,

age

I

All under-fives yer
covcrod-no

Defaulters

lncreased atl€ndoc€,

hospital deliveries

increased

All lhe ctieills gd

service in this Period.

Family planning

Engut

quality,

efficient and

affordable

health care

service to

every client,

To give timely

and most

affordable

referral service

l:Refernl service
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kalacha l,evvl IV Hospital (County Government ofMonabit)
Annual Report and Financlal Statements for The Year Ended 3Ah June 2022

VIL CorporateGovernanceStatement

The absence of the hospital board of marugement made it diflicult to have clear way, but as a

hospital. We the staffand management of kalacha hospital remain steadfast in conforming with all
laws and regulations of government and Ministry of health in carrying our responsibilities in
accordance with code ofconduct.

VIIL Management Discussion end Analysis

Kalacha sub hospital is operatingfairly well and has always endeavour to give high quality health
service to all. Despite a number of challenges the hospital was able to deliver many services to

its clie*s satisfactory. In the financial ending 3P of June 2022, there was only malot prcject,
which was a free eye camp carried out by partner catted WARDA based in Garisa. During rhe

exercise a total of 612 patients were seen and out of which ll9 were operated on and the rest

treated for variow qrc conditions. The estimated cost of camp was at l.3m;the finoncial
performance of the hospital was generally low due inadeguate cost sharing, and government

frodmg.

The risks factors includes handling of out disease outbreah inadeqtnte stafing, extended shrfts,

overtime, in adequtefinarcial supprt, por slaffng, staffattitude.

I
ClinheUoperational performance
o Bed capacity of the hospital

c overall patieru afiendance duing the year for both inptierrt and ouprient.
c Accident and Emergency altendance

. Specialised clinic attendonce

o Average length of stayfor in patient.

o Bedoccapancy rate

o Mortality rate

o surgical theatre utilisation (number of operations over a period of time)

. Sponsorships and portnerships (outreach) 96 times(rwice a week)

Financial performance that includes: -
c Revenue sources,

o Cost SharingCharges

o NHIF

- 42.

- 4535

-96

-54

- 5 DAYS

- 45%

-0

-0

I
I

xiiilPage
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AIES

ion {funds etc

Are Utilized At The Source And As Per Directive Of The Health Management Team

d By The Chief Oficer Of Health,

ment discttssion and analysis should be signed by the Chief Execwtive fficer/Medical

e Bonaya Adano

Executive Olficer

e

The Year Ended
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kalacha Levul IV Hospital (County Goverwnent of Manabit)
Annaal Repoa and Flnancial Statemeus for The Year Ended 3Ah June 2022

x. Environmental And Sustainability Reporting

i) Susafnabtltty sfratq) and proltte

The hospitals main mandate is to give health care service to all Kenyans at any given
time, putting in perspective of afordability, eficiency, timery and quarity medicar,

surgical and refenals services. This is our code mandate. Despite this endeavour lhere
still exist challenges reloting lo inodequate availabiliry oflhe existing resources; such
as firance, human resources, infrastructure, road network, high iltireracy level within
the community within the catchmenr area of the hospital and the far flunk oreas.

Sustainability is a big deal due lo the above-mentionedfactors, especially given thefacts
lhat the hospilal is situoted in o very remote area and some of the villages are situated
in places where there are no roads nor connected to networks and the only awa-y to
reach them is through special programs such as outreach service. This can only be
sustainable by colleclive efort of the gwernment and partners as it is the practice now.

il) Envhonmentol perfo rmtnce

ln this view the hospital ,nanagement has pu tnaasures on environmental ,nalters in
accordance wilh guidonce and policies that give directive on how to handle general
wqste, clinical waste and hazardous waste. the hospiral burning chamber, placenra pit,
it has maintained colour coding, segregalion of waste at collection points. All expired
drugs and other commodities are separated waiting disposal protocols. On the hand the
hospital management has maintained the general cleanliness of the hospital
envirotunent, panted over 2000 trees which are well maintained and this has created a
macro environment within the hospilal.

iii) Employee welfare

This is done at department level .

U Ma*a place pructices- no mach around thl*
The organisation should outline its eforts to:

a) Respottsible competition practice.

The Hospital i.s a not for profit Hospital and does not engage in competilion but
seeks to ofler medical services to all.

b) Raponslble Supply chain and suppller reladons

I
I

xvlPage
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IV Hospitol (County Govvrrurcru of Monabit)
n and Financial Statements r The Year Ended 3Ah June 2022

The Hospital has been sourcing for supplies especially from the immediate local

commwtity. The suppliers are promptly pid but over time tlrcre hos been pending

bills which hwe afected semice delivery. The Hospital is workingwith the County

department of health to ensure the bills are settled in good time

c) Responsible marhcting and advertisemenl

Outline eforts to maintain ethical market ing praclices.

d) hoduct stewardship

Pqtients' rights are observed and interest considered while delivering semice to

tl* public.

Corpomte Soclal Responsibtlity / Corurutnlty Engagemenls

In many occasions the hospital are allowed to go oul and give health tall<s in chief

barozos or somelimes lhe community units level- Ll/e support the community health

volunteers by allowing them to have their meetings at the hospitol and providing lhem

with tea qnd snaclu. They are also give givenfree service at the hospital,

The hupttal has identtfied l2 destitute persora within kalacho trading centres and they

are given free mcdiul services.

50 traditional birth attendance are also listed as the benejticiary of this free medical

service at the hospital.

The hospital has made it a routine to thot on the l5h of December of every year to have

commtnity cowersation, evaluation dialogue on service delivery at hospital. In this

m@ting we discuss the progress of the hospital, outline future plans and also listen to

the inpu of the community members.

vl

IT

r)
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kalacha Leavl IV Hospital (County Gowrwnent of Manabit)
Annual Repon and Financial Statements for The Year Endcd 3d June 2022

)L Report of The Board of MaDagement

Durirrg tlrellrrancbl year endcd i0 June 2022 the Horyttat dld ,tot lrave s fuatd ln place.

The Board members submit their report together with the Audited Financial Statements for the
year ended June 30, 2022, which show the state of the hospit al,s affairs.

Priaciprl activities

The principal activities of the Hospital are (continue to be) ... .

Results

The results of the Hospital for the year ended June 30 2022 arc set out on pages I to 77

Board of Management

There was no board during the year ended 30 June 2022.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Hospital in accordancc with
Article 229 of the constitution of Kenya and the public Audit act 2ois.

By Order of the Board

I

rviilPage

Name

Sccrctary to the Board

(To be signed by the Secretary ofthe Board)

The Hospital did not have a board durine the vear.
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al n and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3F June 2022

tement of Board of Management's Responsibilities

164 of the Public Finance lvlanagement Act"20l2 (entitie.s should quotc the applicable
'ation mder which they are regulated)) requires the Board of Management to prcpare

al statements in respect of Kalacha Level IV Hospital, which give a true and fair view
state ofaffairs ofthe Hospital at the end ofthe financial yearlperiod and the operating

of the Hospital for thalyear/period. The Board of Management is also required to ensure

ial position of the Kalacha Level lV Hospital.The council members are also responsible

guarding the assets of the Hospitale

of Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Kalacha

IV Hospital financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
tal for alnd as at the end ofthe financial year (period) ended on June 30, 2022. This

ibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and

g that these continue to be effective throughout the reporting p€rio{ (ii) maintaining

accouriling records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial

n of the Hospital, (iii) designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls

t to the preparation and fair presentation ofthe financial statements, and ensuring that

free from material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud, (iv) safeguarding the

of the Hospital ; (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and (vi)
g accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

of Management accepts responsibility for the Hospitals financial statements, which

prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudcnt

s and estimates, in conformity with Irilemational Public Sector Accounting Standards

), and in the manner required by the PFM Act,2012 and County Government Act2012
d members are of the opinion that the Hospital's financial statements give a true and

of the state of Hospitals transactions during the financial year ended lrurlre 30,2022,
llre, Hospttals finarrcial position as at that dete. Ttte Board members firrthcr confirm the

eness of the accounting records maintained for the Hospital, which have been relied

the preparation of the Hosprtal's financial statements as well as the adequacy of the

s of intemal financial control

ng the financial statements, the Directors have assessed the Hospitals ability to affect

inability of service for the Hospial

I of the financial statements

yl e

Hospitalkeops proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the



kalacho l-evel Iy Hospital (County Governncnl ofManabit)
Annaal Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3F June 2022

The Hospital's financial statements were approved by theBoad (nunagencu uant since therewos no fuard ln proce during the financial year 202112022) on 30 Jirne 2o22 andsigred onits bchalfby:

Neme:

Chrirperson
Borrd of Management

Name:

Acco unting OIIicer (CEO)

I
I

xixlPage
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OF HE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON KALACHA LEVEL 4 HOSPITAL FOR THE
DE 30 JUNE, 2022_ COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF MARSABIT

BLE

ur attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

nsiders whether the financial statements
applicable financial reporting framework,
and regulations that have a direct effect

lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk

ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

the accompanying financial statements of Kalacha Level 4
Government of Marsabit set out on pages 1 to 53, which comprise of

ent the financial position as at 30 June,2022 and the statement of financial

I

H

th

Re

u

of
Au eneral on Kalacha Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County Covernmenl

financial statements

on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
iance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
ines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,

economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure that the
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the

purpose

nt environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those
with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity.

ified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and

systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
revtew

parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
lities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the

nance ManagemenlAcl,2012 and the PublicAuditAct, 2015. The three parts of
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I
performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and the
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in
accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35
of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and explanations, which,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Kalacha Level 4 Hospital - County Government of
Marsabit as at 30 June, 2022 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards
(Accrual Basis) and comply with the Public Finance Managemenl Act,2012, the County
Governments Act, 2012, the Health Acl,2017 and the Marsabit County Health Services
Act, 2016.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Failure to Disclose In-Kind Revenue

The statement of financial performance reflects in-kind contributions from the County
Government amount of Kshs.1 ,626,236 as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements.
However, the amount excludes salaries for staff paid by the County Government on behalf
of the Hospital.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the in-kind contributions from
the County Government of Kshs.1 ,626,236 could not be confirmed.

2. Unsupported Expenditure on Casuals

The statement of financial performance reflects employee costs amount of Kshs.128,000
as disclosed in Note 16 to the financial statements relating to wages to casual staff.
However, supporting documents and information on how casuals were engaged were not
provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the employee costs of
Kshs.128,000 could not be confirmed.

3. Non-Disclosure of Property, Plant and Equipment Balance

The statement of financial position reflects Nil property, plant and equipment balance.
However, review of Hospitals records and physical verification revealed various assets
including land, buildings, motor vehicles, furniture, computers and equipment which were
not discloses in the financial statements. Further, the ownership documents for land were
not provided for audit.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kalacha Level I Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2022- County Government
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4 confirmed lnventory Balance
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tatement of financial position reflect Nil inventory balance as disclosed in Note 30
financial statements. However, there was no evidence that the annual stock;take
nfirm the quantities, value and status of closing inventory balances as at

30J ne,2022 was conducted

ln th circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and valuation of the Nil inventory
bala ce could not be confirmed

5 confirmed Revenue from Rendering Services

The tatement of financial performance reflects Kshs.1 ,225,050 in respect of rendering
ofs ices - medical services income as disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements
H ver, the amount does not include National Health lnsurance Fund (NHIF)

ursements of Kshs.258,250 reflected in the NHIF records resulting to an
une
sup

lained variance of Kshs.258,250. Further, the amount of Kshs.1 ,225,050 was not
rted by a detailed listing indicating the dates, names, description of services

rend red and amount received
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circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of revenue from rendering of
s - medical services of Kshs.1 ,225,050 could not be confirmed.

udit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
lnstitutions (lSSA|s). I am independent of the Kalacha Level4 Hospital Management

rdance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
nsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical

ments applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
e audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
alified opinion.

udit Mafters

udit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
tcance tn the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to

in the year under review.

RT ON LAWFULNESS AND
URCES

EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC

lusion

uired by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
rmed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lavvfulness
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and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Late Submission of Financial Statements

The Hospital Management submitted the financial statements for the year ended
30 June, 20221o the Office of theAuditor-Generalon 18April, 2O24,more than eighteen
months after the statutory deadline of 30 September, 2022. This was contrary to Section
48 (2)(k) of the Public Finance Management Acl, 20'12 which requires an accounting
officer to prepare annual financial statements for each year and submit them for audit
within three months after the end of the financial year.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2. Lack ofan Approved Budget

The statement of financial performance reflects receipts and payments of Kshs.5,281,286
and Kshs.5,265,068, respectively. However, no supporting documents were provided for
annual estimates prepared and approved by the Hospital's Board or Management
Committee. This was contrary to Section 7(i) of the Marsabit County Health Services Act,
2016 which states, inter alia, that the Hospital Committee shall be responsible for
approving estimates before submission to the County Executive Committee Member of
Health.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3. Non-Compliance with Universal Health Coverage Requirements

Review of Hospital records, interviews and verification of services offered, equipment
used and medical specialists in the Hospital at the time of audit revealed that the Hospital
did not meet the requirements Kenya Quality Model for Health Policy Guidelines due to
staff deficits as indicated in the table below;

Report of the Auditor-General on Kalacha Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2022- County Government
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S/No. Category

Recommended by the
Kenya Quality Model
for Health ln-Post

Deficit ot,o

Deficit
1 MedicalOfficers 16 3 13 81

2 Anesthesiologists 0 2 100
Surgeons 0 2

4 Gynecoloqists 2 2
5 Pediatrics 2 0 2 100
6 Radiologists 2 0 2 100

2
3 2 100

0 100



S/N ) Category

Recommended by the
Kenya Quality Model
for Health ln-Post

Deficit otto

Deficit
7 Kenya Registered

Community Health
Nurses

75 62 83

S/Nr Category

Recommended by
the Kenya Quality
Modelfor Health Available Deficit

1 Pediatrics Services 1 0 1 100
2 Renal Services I

Dialysis
1 0 1 100

3 ln Patient Beds 150 50 150
4 ICU Beds o 0 6
5 0

Dialysis Machines 5 0 1006
7
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lna ition, the Hospital lacked the necessary services as outlined in the Health Policy
Guid lines as detailed below,

deficiencies contravene the First Schedule of Health Acl, 2017 and imply that
ing the highest attainable standard of health, which includes the right to health
ervices, including reproductive health care as required by Article 43(1) of the
tution of Kenya, 2010 may not be achieved.

circumstances, the Hospital may not be able to deliver on its mandate

dit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
al statements are complying, in all material respects, with the authorities that
them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
ide a basis for my conclusion.
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REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1Xa) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Failure to Conduct lnternalAudits

Review of the Hospital's governance system revealed that it relied on the lnternal Audit
Unit of the Marsabit County Executive since it had not established its own unit. However,
during the year under review, the lnternal Audit Unit did not carry out any audits on the
operations of the Hospital. This is contrary to Regulation 153(1)(a) of the Public Finance
Management (County Governments) Regulations, 2015 which states that lnternal
auditors shall review and evaluate budgetary performance, financial management,
transparency and accountability mechanisms and processes in county government
entities.

ln the circumstances, the Hospital did not benefit from the independent assurance over
its financial reporting and risk management processes.

2. Lack of Policy Documents

During the financial year under review, the Hospital did not have a risk management
strategy in place and therefore had no approved processes and guidelines on how to
mitigate operational, legal and financial risks. ln the circumstances, Management did not
perform formal risk assessments on all key financial risk areas such as cash, revenue
and expenditure. Further, it was noted that Management lacked a disaster recovery
plan/business continuity plan and therefore crucial information may never be recovered
in the event of a disaster. ln addition, the Hospital was operating without an approved
waiver policy to show proper guidelines and procedures on waivers and therefore the
effectiveness and sufficiency of the controls could not be confirmed.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and
governance could not be confirmed.

3. Lack of an Effective Procurement Unit

During the year under review, the Hospital did not have a procurement unit responsible
for overseeing procurement activities. The Hospital procured food and ration, sanitary

Report of the Auditor-General on Kalacha Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022- County Government

of Marsabit

6



and (

supp
noe
SUbS

durin

ln th
servi,

4.F

Durir
is agi
whicl
Com

ln the

The i
requi
proc(
were
obtai

Res6

Mani
state
Basis
nece
missl
of int

ln pr
Hosp
to sr
Mani

Mani
Audil
2015

ln ac

state
activi

Report

of Llur

leaning materials, pharmaceuticals and non-pharmaceuticals supplies directly from
iers without competitive bidding or floating request for quotations. Further, there was
idence provided to confirm that the supplies were inspected on receipt and
quently utilized. ln addition, the Hospital did not prepare annual procurement plan
the year under review

circumstances, the economy and effectiveness of procurement of goods and
s could not be confirmed.

ilure to Establish Hospita!'s Board of Management

g the year under review, the Hospital's Board of Management was not in place. This
inst the provisions of Section 5(1) of the Marsabit County Health Services Act, 2016,
requires establishment of Hospital Management Boards and Rural Health Facility
ittees whose composition and functions are prescribed in the Act.

circumstances, the Hospital will not achieve its strategic objectives.

udit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective

sses and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
ed is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion

onsibilities of those Charged with Governance

gement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
ents in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual

) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
sary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
tement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
rnal controls, risk management and overall governance

paring the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
l's ability to continue sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related

stainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
gement is aware of the intention to terminate the Hospital or to cease operations.

gement is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
r-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,

ition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
ents described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the

ies, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
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in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Hospital's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to overall
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsi bilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSA|s will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be materials weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

8

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kalacha Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2022- County Governmenl
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effe iveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become

se of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
tements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of

uate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
tal's policies and procedures may deteriorate

p rt of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSA|s, I exercise professionaljudgment
nd aintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also

td ntify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
w ether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
th se risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
b is for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fr ud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
tn ntional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

luate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
a
E

unting estimates and related disclosures made by Management

C nclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
a unting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
e ts related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Hospital's
a lity to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
la required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
fin ncial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
co clusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit report
H ever, future events or conditions may cause the Hospital to cease to continue to
SU tain its services

E luate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
tn uding the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
UN erlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation

o ain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
bu iness activities of the Hospital to express an opinion on the financial statements

Pe rm such other procedures, as I consider necessary in the circumstanceso

om
dti

unicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
ing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

a

inte al controls that are identified during the audit
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I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA an at

Nairobi

28 June,2024
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A I n and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Oh June 2022

tement of Financial Performance for The Year Ended 30 June 2022

t out on pages l0 to 60form an integral part of the Annual Financial Statemenls.)
's financial statements were approved by the Board (management team since the board

'lace during the financial year 202 l/2022) on 30 June 2022 and signed on its behalfby

Head o Finance

Rr YCnU( l from non-exchange transactions
Tr ilnsfeI r from the Counry Govemment 6 2,430,000.00
In kind contributions from the County Government 1,626,236.00
Gt ants fi mn do[ors and development partners

Tr rnsfer i from other Govemment entities 9

Pu blic cr rntributions and donations l0

Rr vefiu( from exchange transactions
Re nderir g of services- Medical Service Income ll 1,225,050.00
Re venue from rent of facilities t2
Fir Iance Interest Income 13

Mi scella reous Income t4
Re vcnu( from exchange transactions
To tal re' ,enue 5,281,286.00
Ex pense

diael /Mt llinical costs l5 2.167.027.00
En ploye ] costs r28,000.00
Bo ud of Management Expenses 17

De :ion and amortization expense l8
Re rairs a nd maintenance 19 534,506.00
Gn rnts ar d subsidies 20 1,626,236.00
Ge reral r xpenses 2t 809,299.00
Fin arrce ( 06ts 22
To' :al ex; enses 5,265,068.00
otl rer ga ln osses)

Ga n/Los i on disposal ofnon-Cunent assets ^!-J

Unt ealize d gain on fair value of investments 24

Me Jical r ervices contracts GainVlosses 25

Imr falrmc nt loss 26

Gai n ) exchange transactions
Tol al oth er gains(losses)

Nel Sur lus / (Deficit) for the year 16,218.00
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Kalocha Level IV Hospital (County Government of Manabit )
Annual Report and Financlal Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Ah lune 2022

Accumulated s lus/Deficit 16 18.00

(The notes set out on pages l0 to 60 form an integral pqrt of the Annual Financial Statements.)

The Hospital's financial statements were approved by the Board (management team since the board
was not in place during thefinancial year 2021/2022) on 30 June 2022 and signed on its behalfby:

Chairman
Boerd of Matragement

Head of Finance
ICPAK No:

Medical SuperintendenU CEO

Reserves 26,077.20
Total 4239s.2O
Total Net Assets and Liabilities 42,295.20
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Annual Report and Flnanclal Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Ah June 2022

XVL Statement of Cash Flows for The Year f,nded 30 June2022

(P&{SB lu,s now prescribed the direct method of v presentation Jbr oll entities under the IPSAS Accrual
basis of accounting).

5

Cesh flows from rating activities
Bqqeipts
Transfers frgm the County Government 6 2,430,000.00
In-kind contribution from Governrnent 7
Grants from donors and develo pment partners 8

Transfers from other Government entities 9
Public contnbutions and donations l0

of services- Medical Service IncomeRenderi
Revenue from rent of facilities
Finance / interest income
Miscellaneous receipts(spe cifu) Fl F ll 1,225,050.00
Total Rgqeipts 3,655,050.00

Palments
l5 2,167,027.00

Employee costs l5 128,000.00
Board ql Management Expenses
Rcpairs aqd maintenance 534,506.00
Grants and subsidies
Gcneral expenses 2t 809,299.00
Finance costs
Refunds paid out

3,638,$2.m
Net cash flows from operating activities 4l t6,21E.00
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of lan e ul ent & intangible assets
Procecds from the sale of property, plant, and equipment
Acquisition of investnents
Net cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flor!! from financing activities
Procecds from borrowi

Capital grants received
Net cash flows used in financing activities
Net increase(decrease) in cash qnd cash equivalents 16,218.00

vCash and cash equivalents as at I Jul 27 26,077.20
Cash end cash uiyalents as at 30 June 27 42,295.20
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Kalacha lzvel IV Hospital (County Governrnent of Marsabit )

MedicaVClinical costs

Totel PaymenS

Repavment of borrowings
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and Financiql Statements or The Year Ended 3Uh June 2022

set out in pages I 0 to 60 form an integtral part of the Annual Financial Statements-

's financial statements were approved by the Board (management team since the butrd
place duringthefinancial year 2021/2022) on 30 June 2022 and signed on its behalfby
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Heed oltFinance
ICPAK No:
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Medical SuperintendenU CEO

Management

6



Kalacha Level IV Hospital (County Government of Manablt)
Annual Report and Financlal Stalements for The Year Ended W June 2022

XVU. Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Arnounts for Year Ended 30 Jnn 2022

A b F(.+b) D e=(c{) t=d,lc'/o
Krhr Krhr Kshs Krhr Klhr

Revenue

Transfcrs ftom thc County Covsrnment (ln-kind)
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2,430,000.00 2,4 3 0,000.00
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Yo
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Vo
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Totrl income
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809,299.00 809,299.00 E09.299.00 l00Yo
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Yo
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Kalocho l.evel IV Hospital (Monabit CoanO
Annual Reporl qnd Finonciol Stotencnts for

Gweraneu)
The Year Ended 3(F lune 2022

XV[I. Notes to the Financiat Statements

l. General Informetion

Kalacha Level IV Hospital is established by and derives its authority and accountability
frorn the county Governmert Act2or2, Marsabit county Hearrh Services Acr 20ld and
Pnblic Finance Manageinenr Ac..2olz. The Hospitar is whofly owned by d,e Manabit
County Govemment and is domiciled in Marsabit courty in Kenya. The Hospital,s
principal activity is to provide quality and affordable preventive , pronotive,
rehabilitative and curative health services.

2. Stetcment of Complirnce rnd Besis of preperetion

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except fo the
messurqnent at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant, and equipment,
markeEble securities urd financial instrum€nts a frir value, impaired assets at their
esimated recoverable amounts and achnrially determined liabilities at their present
value. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Intemational public
Sertor Accounting standards (IpsAS) allows the use of estimates and assrrmptions. lt
also rcguires management to er(ercise judgement in the process o f appryngtle Hospitat,s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree ofjudgment or compreity, or
whcre assumptions and estimates are sigrificant to the financial statsmsnts, are disctose.d
in Noe xx The financiar statsments have been prepared and presented in Kenya
Shillinp, which is the fim"tiqral and repcting currency of the Hospitar. The finarcial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the pFM Act, and (include any other
apf,icoble legislation), and International public Sector Accounting stsndards (IpsAs).
Thc accounting policies adopted have been consistently appried to all the years presented.
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Loct IV HosPiul (Mana bit CountY Governncntl

Reporl ond Fi na ncial State me nts tor The Year Ended 3(ts June 2022

Adoption of New and Reviscd Standards

and emended standsrds end interpretations in issue efiective in tte year ended 30

2022.

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the finarrcial

reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevam

and usefitl information to us€rs of financial statements for their

asscslnent of the arnorms, timing and urcertainty of an Hospital's

future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more usefirl

information than IPSAS 29' bY:

.Applyrngasingleclassificationandmeasurementmodelfor

financial assets that considers the characteristics ofthe asset's cash

flows and the objective for which the asset is held;

. Applying a single fcrward-looking expected credit loss model that

is applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment

testing; and

Applicable: I 't January 2023

Applicable: I't JanuarY 2023

TheobjectiveofthisStandardistoimprovetherelevance,faithfiil

representativeness and comparability of the information that a

reporting Hospital provides in its financial statements about social

benefits. The information provided strould help usen of the financial

statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature ofsuch social benefits provided by the Hospital'

IPSAS 42; Social

Benefits

l0

1

3.

i.

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that b,roodsns the

hedging ilrangements in scope of the guidance' The model

develops a strong link between an Hospital's risk management

srategies and the accounting treatment for instruments held as part

of the risk management strategy.

(State the impact of the stondard to the Hospital if relevant)

Sundard not adoPted



Hospital (Morxobit GwerancU)
Annuol R ond Finoncial Slatenvnts The Yeor Ended 3(F June 2022

I

@) The key featurei ofthe operation of those social benefit schemeg

Amcndmeflts to

Other IPSAS

resulting from

IPSAS 41,

Fimncial

IDstruEents

a) Amen&ncnts to IpSAS 5, to update the guidance relatcd fo the
components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently
omitted when IpSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendmots to IpSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples oo
hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omi66{
when IpSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for
accountrng for fnanciar guarantee contracts which were
inadvertently omitted when IpSAS 4l was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifiing
financial instuments on initial adoption ofaccrual basis IpSAS wtrich
were inadvertently onitted when IpSAS 4l was issued.
(State the impact of the standard to the Hospltal if relcvant)
Standard not adopted.

Applicable: I't January 2023

Other

improvements to

IPSAS

o IPSAS 22 Disclosare of Finarrial Information about the Geneml
Government Seclor.

Amendments to refer to the latest System of National Accounts (SNA
2008).

t IPS,4S 39: Employee BeneJits

Now deletes the tenn composite social security benefits as it is uo
lmgerdefined in IpSAS.

o IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition arul Measuremenl
Standard no longer included in tlre 2023 IpSAS handbook as it is now
superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable from ld Jan

Applicoble Id Jonaory 2023

Mry 2023

ll

Kalocho Levet Iy banty

and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Hospial,s
financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

(Stotc the t rgact of the sUndard lo the Hospttol if relevont)
Standard not odopted



A
Iwct IV Hospital (Manabit C-ounty Governntnt)

The Year Ended 3ff June 2022Report and Financial Stalerrunls 0r

l) Eaily qdoption olsnndards

e Hospital did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the financial year

2V2022

Slate the hryoct of the

Standard not adoPted"

ndard dHospilal relevonlethlosta

Applicabb Id January 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recogrrition, measurement'

presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensne that

lessees and tessors provide relevant information in a marurer that

frithfully represents those transactions. This infsmation gives a basis

fur users offinancial stat€rnents to assess the effect that leases have

on the financial position, financial performance and cashflows of an

Hospital.

The new standard requires entities to recogrrise, m€asure and prescnt

information on right ofuse assets and lease liabilities'

State the impact of the standard to lhe Hospital itwla'ant

Sundord notodopud

SAS 43

Apilfccble ld tcnuc4Y 2025

The Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to

sell urd tre depreciation od zuch assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the crit€ria to be classified as held for sale to be

presented separately in the statement of financial position and the

results of discontinued operations to be presented separately in the

statement of fi nancial performance.

Statc the irnpact of the standatd to the Hospittl tf relevanl

Standad not adoptcd-

SAS 44: Non-

uffe-nt Assets

ld for Sale and

scqrtinued

fions

t2

I
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Xalocho Levyl IV Hospiul (Monobit County Govenntnt)
Annuol Report a nd Fi na nc ial Stateme ntslor The Year Ended 3F June 2022

4. Summary of Significant Accounting policies
r. Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange tansactions

Trenslcrs from other Government entities

Rcvcnucs from non-exchnnge Earsactions with other goverment entities are measured at fair
valrc and recognized on obtaining control ofthe asset (cash, goods, services and property) if
the ransfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or s€rvice
potential related to the asset will flow to the Hospital and can be measured reliably. To the
extflt ftal there is a related condition dtached that would give rise to a liability to repay the
amormt. tbe amount is recorded in the statem€nt of financial position and realised in the
statc,mcnt of financial performance over the usefrrl life ofthe asset that has beea acquired using
such flmds.

ii) Revenue from erchange transactions

Rcndcring ofscrvices

The Hospital recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of
complaion when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. ths stnge of
complaim is measured by referurce to labour houn incurred to date as a percentagp of toal
estimucd labour hours. Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenuc is
reoognized only to the extent that the expenses incurred arp recoverable.

Sale ofgoods

Rcvcnuc from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rspards of
owncrship have bean transferred to the buyer, uzualty on ddivery of the goods and when the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the economic benefits or
service potential associated with the fiansaction will flow to the Hospital.

Interrst incomc

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life ofthe financial asset to that asset,s tret

carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine
interest income for each period.

Rentel income

Rental incme arising from operating leases on investnsnt properties is accounted fgr on a
shaight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

l3



Iwel lV Hospilal (Monabtt Counly Gwenncnl)
nnu Report and Finoncial Stotenents tor The Year Ended 3(ts June 2022

to lhe Financial Sulcnpnls (Continued)

Budget information

ginal budget for Financial Yeu 2021/202 was approved by the management team in the

e ofthe Board on 30/6/2021. Subsequent revisions or additional appropridions were

to the approved budge in acccdance with specific approvals from the appropriate

ties. The additional appropriations are added to the original budget by the Hospital upon

ng the respecfive approvals in order to conclude the final budget

ogly, the Hospital recorded no additional appropriations during the Financial Year

022 budget following the Bord's approval. \\e Hospital's budga is prepared on a

basis to the actual income and expendirure disclosed in the financial statements. The

soBtcments are prepared on accrual basis using a classification based on the naturc of

in the statement offinancial performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash

The amormts in the financial stat€ments were recast frqn the accnral basis to the castt

and reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget.

parison of budget and actual amomts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved

, is then presented in the statement of conparison of budget and actual amounts. In

on to the Basis difference, adjusnnents to amomts in the financial statem€nts are also

for diftrences in the formats and classification schernes adopted for the presentation of

al statements and the approved budget. A statement to reconcile the acnral smormts

parable basis included in the statement of cunparison of budget and actual amounts

actuals as per the statement offinancial performance has been presented on page I

tar/ Value Added Tar

and assets are recogruzed net of the amount of sales tax, except:

) When the sales tax incurred on a purchase ofassets or services is not recoverable

from the taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recopized as part of the

cost of ac4uisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

The nst amounl of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority

is included as part ofreceivables or payables in the statement offinancial position.
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Kolocho lrtal IV Hospiul (Manahit C.aunly Gwerunent)
Annaol Report ond Finunciol Statemcnts for The Yeor Ended 3F June 2022

Notcs lo thc Financial SUUrrcnA (Continued)

d. Invcstmcnt property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying
amtxmt includes the replacement cost of components of an existing investrnent property at the
time dm cost is incuned if the recopition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-
day maintenance ofan investnent property.

Investment prope4y acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair value
at ths date ofacquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, investsnent properties are measrued

using tte cost model and are depreciated over a period of.wyears. Investment properties are
doccopized either wh€n ttry have been disposed of or when the invetnent prop€rty is
pe'rmanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit or service potential is
exPected &om its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
aeqrnt of the asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period of de-recopition.
Transfers arc made to m from investm€nt property oily whan there is a change in use.

e. Propcrty, plant and equipment

All propctty' plant and equipment are stated at cost less accunulated dcpreciation and
impeirmeat losses. Cost includes expendifire thal is directly attributable to the acquisitim of
the itcms. when sigrificant parts of property, plant md equipme,nt are required to be rcplacod
at iilervals' the Hospital recoglizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and &preciates thsrn accordingly. Likewise, whea a major inspection is performed, its cost is
rc@gnized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
rccognitim criteria are satisfied. All offrer repair and maintenanoe costs are recognized itr
surplus or deficit as incuned. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil
or nqninal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

I
I
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Level IV Hospilol (Monobit C.ounly Gwernncnt)
Report and Financiol Surcnentsfor The Year Ended 3(F June 2022

l,eeses

leases are leases that transfer substantially the entire risks and benefits incidental to

p ofthe leased item to ttre Hospital. Assets held under a finance lease are capitalized

conrm€ncsment of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the

t value of the future minimtmr lease payments. The Hospital also recopizes the

d lease liability at the inception ofthe lease. The liability recognrzed is measured as

t value of the future minimum lease payments at initial recogtition

uent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and

m of the lease liability so as to achieve a @nstant rate of interest on the remaining

held under a finance lease is depreciated ovsr the useful life of the asset. Howevcr, if
is no roasonable certainty that the Hospital will obtain ownership of the asset by the end

lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated usefirl life of the

ng leases are leases that do not transfsr substantially all the risks and benefits incidental

p of the leased itern to the Hospital. Operating lease payments are recognized as an

ng experse in zurplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Intangible assets

ble assets acquired separately are initially rocogruzrl at cost. The cost of intangible

acquired in a non-exchange [ansaction is their fair value at the date ofthe exchange

ing initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated

on and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets,

g ceitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in

or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. The usefrrl life of the

ble assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite

l6

/tstt,

I

to the Financial Ststerrrttls (Conlinaed)
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I

of the liability. Finance charges are recogtized as finance costs in surplus or deficit.

An

and the lease term.
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fqlacho l-cxl IV Hospital (Monobit Counly Goven rant)
Annaal Reporl ond Financial Stalements for The Year Ended 3F June 2022

Nolrs lo thc Finsncial Stoterrcnt (Continued)

h. Rcseerch and dcvelopmentcosb

Thc Hospital expenses research costs as incurred. Developnent costs on an individual projcct
arc rccognizEd as intangible assets when the Hospital can dernonstrate:

' Th tochnical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be available for use
or sale

o 16 intstrtion to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

r The asset will generate future ecooomic benefits or service potential

. The availability of resources to complete the asset

r The atlility to measure reliably the expenditure during develqment.

Following initial recognitiqr of an asset, the asset is csried at cost less my accrnnulated
amortization and accumulated impairmant losses. Amortization of the asset begins when
derrolqmcnt is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period of
expedcd future benefit. During the period ofdevelopmen! the asset is tested for impairment
annually with ury impairment losse recognized immediately in srnplus m deficit.

i. Financial instruments

IPsAs'll addresses the classification, measurfirent and de-recogrition of finencial asseis and
fintncial liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairm€nt model
for finansial assets. Tie Hospilal does not have any hedge relatiorahips and rherefore the new
hefue wcounting rules hoe no impacr on lhe company's financial statements. (amerd as
appropiate).

A finensial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a finansisl asset ofone Hospital and a
finmcial liability or equity instrument of another Hospital. At initial recopition, the Hospital
measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a
financial asset or financial liability not at frir value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs
that are directly atfibutable to the acquisition or issue ofthe financial asset or financial liability.

l7



Loet IV HosPinl (Monabit County Governn*nl)

Report and Financial Statemenls lor The Year Ended 3(F June 2022

to the Firunciat Suurrc nts (Continaed)

etion of financial assets

tal classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, frir

through net assetv equity q fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis ofboth

ospital,s management model for financial assets and the contractual cash flow

stics of the financial asset. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost when the

iat asset is held within a management model whose objective is to hold financial assets

to collect contrachtal cash flows md the cqrtractual terms of the finmcial assct give

specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of pnncipal and interest on the

outstsnding. A financial asset is measured at fair value through net assets/ equity ifit

withinthemanagementmodelwhoseobjeaiveisachievedbybothcollecting

ctual cashflows and selling financial assets and the contrachal terms of the financial

give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal and interest

pnncipal amount outstanding A financial asset shall be measured at frir value tttrough

us or deficit unless it is measured at amortized cost or fair value through net assetV equiU

m Hospital hasmade irrevocableelectiqr at initial recognitiur fapartiorlrinvestments

uity instruments

t measurement

oa thc businc$ model and the cash flow c,haracteristics., the HoopiUl classifies its

ial assets into amortized cost or fair value categories for financial instruments'

ents in fat value are presented in either surplus or deficit or through net assetd equity

ect to certain criteria being met

ed cost

Essets that are held for collection ofcontractual cash flows where those cash flows

t solely payments ofprincipal and interest, and ttrat are not designated at fair value

surplus or deficit, are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument thet

uently measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is

ized in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized or impaired. Interest income frun
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-'rancial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.



fobcrra Itvcl IV Hospital (Monabit CouW Goverurrvn )
Annaal Report and Financiol Stotenwnltfor The Year Ended 3F June 2022

Noles to the Financial Staunenx (Contiaued)

Felr velue through nct essctJ equity

Feirvrlue through surplus or deficit

Finarcial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or fair value through net assets/

equity arc measured at ftir value througlr surplus or deficit. A business model where the

Hospital manages financial assets with the objective of realizing cash flows through solely the

salc oflhe assets would result in a fair value through surplus or deficit model.

Trede end othcr rcccivrHcs

Trade and other receivables are recopi zd at fair values less allowances for any rmcollectible

amortrts. Trade and other receivables are assessed for impairmsnt on a continuing basis. An

estimde is made of doubtfirl receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the

year end.

Impairment

Thc Hospital assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated

with its finnngial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through uet assetVequity. The

Hocpital recogrizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. Critical estimates

afld siSnificantjudgments made by management in determining the expocted credit loss @CL)
are set otrt in .ly'ore rI.
Fimncial liabilities

Classification

Thc Hoopital classifies is liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost expgpt for
financial liabilities measured through profit or loss.

I

l9

Fitrmcial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling tbe

financial assets, where the assets' cash flows repres€nt solely payments of principat and

intqest, re measured at fair yalue through net assely equity. Movernents in thc carrying

amolmt are taken through net assets, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,

interest revenue and foreigr exchange gains and losses which are recognized in surpluVdeficit.

Interest income frorn these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective

intcrest rate method.



nnu

(Manobit Counly Gwern nt),r9

RePortl u,td ,tu,,cIuI leme ntslor The Ended 3F Jane )022t-i Sta Year

to the Financial Statencnts (Coffiinaed)

Inventories

is measured at cost upon initial recogrition To the extent that inventory was received

incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for

lows

Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method'

Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour, and a

Proportionofmanufacturingoverheadsbasedonthenorma]operatingcapacitybut

excluding borrowing costs.

initial recogrition, inventory is measrned at the lower cost and net realizable value'

ever, to the extent that a class ofinventory is distributed or deployed al no charge or for a

charge, tlnt class of inventory is measured at the lower cost and the crrrsnt

t cost.Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

ms, less the estimated costs of cunpletion and the estimated costs necessary to make

e, exchange, or distribution. Inventories are recogtized as an expense when deployed for

tigtorconsumptionintheordinarycourseofoperationsoftheHospital.

Provisions

ons are recognized when the Hospital has a present obliptior (legal or constructive) as

t ofa past event, it is probable that an outflow ofresources embodying economic benefits

cc potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made

amolmt of the obligation

the Hospital expects some or all ofa provision to be reimbursed. for exarnple. unds 8n

bursement is virtuallY certatn

f any reimbursement

20

I-evel IV HosPilal

non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost ofthe invento'ry

ls hir value d the date of acquisition'

AS

the

conmct, the reimbursernent is re€ognized as a separale asset only when the

exp€nse relating to any provision is presented in the statement offinancial performance

net

j.

k

a

or

of
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Kaloclto L*cl IV Hwpitol (Monobit Coanty Governnral)
Annaal Report ond Finoncial Stotements for The Yeor Ended 3(F June 2022

Notes to the Fiaanciot Starerrpt fr (Continued)

l. Sociel BcnefiB

Socisl benefits are cash transfers provided to i) specific individuals and / or households that
mcst thc eligibility criteris, ii) mitigate the effects of social risks and iii) Address the nced of
sociay as a whole. The Hospital recogrises a social benefit as an expense for the social benefit
schane at the sane time that it recognises a liability. The liability fo the social bcnefit schane
is measured at the best estimate of the cost (the social benefit payments) that orc Hospital will
incur in ftlfilling the present obligations rspresented by the liability.

m. Contingcut liebilitics

The Hospital does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details ofany contingencies
in the notes to the financial statements turless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic bwfits or service potential is remote.

n. Contingent rsscts

The Hospital does not recogrize a contingent asset but discloses details of a possible asset
whose oristmce is contingent on the occurence or non-occr[Tgllce of one or more uncertain
futtnc cvcots not wbolly within the control of the Hospital in tbe notes to the fitrmcial
stat€ments. Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developnents are
appropriuely reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an
inflow ofeconomic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's value can be measwed
reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial stat€m€nts of the
paiod in which the change occurs.

o. Nature and purpose ofreserves

Thc Hoepital q€at€s aDd maintains reseryes in terms of specific requiremeots. (Hospnral rc
stale the neseraes maintained and appropnate policies adoptecl)

p. Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Hospital recognizes the effects ofchanges in accounting poliry retospectively. The effects
of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if rerrospective application is
impractical.

I
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Iwel lV Hospital (Manabit County Gwernnunl)
Report and Financiol Statementsfor The Year Ended 3(F June 2022

b the Finqncial Stolcnenls (Continaed)

Employee benefis

t benefit plans

ital provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined contribution

te Hospital (a fimd) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay frirther

butions ifthe frrnd does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to

oycc service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to firnd obligations for the

bution plans. The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the

unit credit method basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lump-sum

or increased future contributions on a proportional basis to all participating

ers. The contributions and lump sum payments reduce the post-employment benefit

m.

Foreign currency transactions

ons in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on

of t[e transaction. Trade creditss or debtors denominated in foreigt curency are

at the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on

Exchange differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting

d rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period,

zed as incqne or expenses in the period in which they arise

Borrowing costs

g costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part of property, plant and

Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being

or constructed and bonowings have been inctmed. Capitalization ceases when

oo ofthe asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the staterncnt of
performance

Rclated parties

tal rcgards a related party as a person or an Hospital with the ability to exert cootrol

ly or jointly, or to exercise sigrificant influence over the Hospital, or vice versa.

of key management zue regarded as related parties and comprise the directors, ttre

ncipal and senior managers

22
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q.

arc post-employment b€nefit plms under which an Hospltal psys fixed cmtributions into

of retirement benefits are charged against income in the year in which they become

Defined benefit plans are post-ernployment benefit plans other than defined-

r.
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are
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Kolocho lrvcl IV Hospiul (Monobtt C-ounly Gwerrurnt)
Annaal Reporl and Fi nan c ial State me ntstor The Vear Ended 3F tune 2022

Ndesto the Fbunciat Sutentnb (huiaued)
u. Service conccssioo errengements

The Hospital analyses all aspeas of service concession ara[gements that it enters imo in
daermining the appropriate accounting treament and disclosure requirements. In particglar,
whcrc a privatc party coltributes ao asset to the arrangernen! the //osprtd recognizes that asset
wherl and only when, it controls or regulates the services. The operator must provide together
with the asset, to whom it must provide them, and at what price. In the case of assets other than
'whole-of-life' assets' it controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlernent or otherwise - any
sipificmt residual interest in the asset at the end of the arrangern€nt. Any asses so recopized
are measured at their fair value. To the extent that an asset has been recognized,the Hospilol
also r*ognizes a corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash considsration paid or reccived,

v. Ctsh end cesh rquivdcnts

Cash md cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, strort-tsrm depcits o call
and highly liquid investsnents with an original maturity of three months or lcss, which are
readily cmrqtible to lnown amounts of cash and are subject to insigtificad risk of changes
in ralrre' Bank accormt balances include amounts held at the Cenral Bank of Kenya and at
various cornmercial banks at the end ofthe financial year. For the purposes ofthese financial
statffis' casr and cash equivalents also include short term castr imprests and advanccs to
auttoriscd public officers and/a institutions which were not sunendcred tr rcccruntcd ftr at
the end ofthe financial year.

w. Comprative figures

Whcrrc necessry cunparative figures for the previous financial yer have been amended or
reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

The financial yew 2021/2022 was the base year for transitioning to the IpSAS Accrual basis of
acccnrnting method and as such there were no comparatives.

r. Subsequent events

Thare hrve been no events subsequent to tlre financial year end with a significant impact on the
financiel $atements for the year ended Jrme 30,2022.
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LocI IV Hospitol (Monobit Coun y Goveilrrsnt)
Repon and Finonciol Slatements lor The Year Ended 3(F June 2022

ificant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

on of the Hospital's financial staternents in confrrnity with IPSAS requires

to make judgments, estimates and assrunptions that affect the rcported amounts

cxpenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingrnt liabilities, at the

0r reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could

in outoomes that rcquire a material adjustment to the carryhg ulormt of the assct or

ty affeaed in furure penods.

tcs and assumptions.

assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation unc€rtainty at

orting date, that have a sigrrificant risk of causing a material adjustrnent to the carrying

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The

based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the c@solidsted

statgm€nts were prepared. However, exiSing circurnstmces md assgmptions about

)

lives and residusl values

potential future use and value fiom disposal

Thc condition of thc assct bascd on the assessnent of crycrts cmploycd W the

Horpital.

The nature ofthe asset, its suscept'bility and adaptability to changes in technolory

and processes.

The nature ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed.

Availability of funding to replace the asset.

Changes in the market in relation to the asset.

or3

provisiors applicable for your organisation e.g proision for bad debn, provtsions ofobsolete sttr;l(s ard
enl estimales these provisions)

F

The

of

5.

developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the

ofthe Hospital. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.( IPSAS

rhe i lives and residual values of assets are ass€ssed using the following indicatms to

were no provisions during the year.

,rrJ
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Kalocha lacl IY Hupdul (Monobit C-ounly Governn*nl)
Annaal R and Financial Statenpnts for The Year Ended 3F June 2022

Notes to Financial Statements Continued

6. Trensfers from the Coun$r Government

6 b Transfers from The County Government

@nsurc lhal lhe amormt recorded abo'vv as having been received from the Counly full1t reconciles to
the a,ormt rcco4ed by the amount rccorded as rransfened ry n" cority i'iiarr*kagr^r,
note/r"ceipt should be mised .in faour oJ the sending County Gowmient. The deails-of rherconcitiation lave been included utder appndix xs).

]Amore,l ,ecogflised in the statement offinancial perfonnance should be rhe recanent gmnt ond the
developnent gmnt lo lhe extmt that there are ,o ioiditio^ ottached. Total of colurm I should tie to
note 6(the pA on unconditional gmnts).

I

Unconditional grants

Opaational grant

Level 5 grants

Unconditional devel ent grants

Other grants

Conditional grants

forgoneUser fee

Transforming (rhheal cesseryl for Uni careversal ect THU PCproJ

DANIDA
Wards Devel gnmt

Paediatric block grant

Adminisration block grant

Laboratmy grant

grrnls lnd subaidiesTotal

Manabit
Cormty
Government

-NHTF 2,430,000 N/a

Totat

25
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and wages

spplics-Drawings Righs (KEMSA)

ticals and Non-Phrrnaceuti cal Supplies (other suppliers)

ard R"dions

greutr in kind

Centre grant- DANIDA

Bank grants

c ward grant- JICA

grants

grauts(srycfY)

granb from

, DANIDAe.

BEnk

a
;
a

E
@
E
E
m

1

I
I
I

r@

i:tl,ry
tr
@

m

I
t;.--
E
E
tr

I

LcvclUHmpital (Monobit Counly
Report and Financial Stateme ntrtfor

to Financial Statements Continued

Kind Contributions from The County Government

iacludc paymenls made directly by the County Governments for slaf salaries and

I drugs. These should be recorded bolh as income and expense for compleleness of
I slatemenls)

From Ilonors and Development Partners

vlde bief explanalion for lhis revenue)

Grants from donors and development partners (Classification)

26

Govenncnt)
The Year Ended 3(ts June 2022

7.

0

0

0 0

00ity bills @lectricity expenses)

0 0

01,626.236

00

00Wo

Cat

00

00

00

0 0
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llospitdl (Mamabit County Govcrnmcnt)
nd Financiol Stotements for The Year Ended 3Uh June 2022

From Other Government Entities

ntributions and Donations

explanalion./br this reverute)

tions of amortised grants

nsfe

00)l fiom National Govenrment (Mittistry of Health)cl

s 0 0Ira National Hospital Insurance fuird

s 00lra le xxx Inslitute

0 0I T s crsot

,l blic

ic 0 0'Ll t) donations

00)or ions from local leadership

0)or ions fiom religious institutions

00)or ions from other international organisations and individuals

)rh 00d tions(specify)

0)ol ions in kind-arnortised

0 0o tr I donations and sponsorshigrs

te brieJ

leconr

ic

It 0

Ialr n c( unspent at beginning of year

lur
\rn ,r transferred to revenue

rl riIo I ons to be met - remain liabilities

27
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Kalacho Level IV llosPital
Annual Report ond Financ

(Manobit Cutnty
ial StatemenlsJbr

Government)
The Year Ended 3Uh June 2022

Notes to Financial Statements Continued

I l. Rendering of Services-Medical Service Income
I

0414,680Phamraceuticals
00

Non-Phannaceuticals
0400,000Laborato
0380,000Radiolo
00c and Trauma TechnolOrtho
00Theatre
00ServiceAccident and Em
00Anesthesia Service
00Ear Nose and Throat service
00Nutrition service
00Cancer centre service
030,370Dental services
00ve health
00Paediatrics services
00

00
Farewell lrotne services

Other medical services inc ln atlent
0

1,225,050Total revcnuc from the rendering of
serviccs

(()ther nrcdical sen'icas fee rclales lrt

12. Revenue From Rent of Facilities

(Provide brief explanatittn rttr this rcvenue)

13. Finance /lnterest lncomc

otlrcr charges nctt listed obov and shottld be speciJied)

00Residential properfy

00Commercial property

00Total Revenue liorn rent of facilities

I

00Cash investments and fixed deposits

28
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00st income from short- tt erm/ cnrent
its

00I
00

income from Treasury Bills

income llorn Treasury Bonds
t

tlr
0

st frorn outstanding debtorstI:
00tnl finance incomc1

t)l'h

00

00co
00

recovenes

frorn sale o['tcnder

s concesslon lncome
00goods (water, publications, contailers etc)( ale

0/ rit ks (Deposits, payments in advance etc)\
00ad recovercdl

00( tthe ct
00'ota I Misccllancous incornc't

00)err costs/ rnatcrialsI
qhr 0102,090ory chemicals and reagetrts

0\ll,
00and Ration (in kind contribution)I ool
0and Rationoo(
00

r,983,',1 44

inil nn, clothing, and linenI

034,000lnrl ee cost

0)ret
KF-

0
SA

ing and Non-Pharmaceutica lsI

I

02't,290
euticals/dnt S

eutical and non-)hat

rhar
00{ea

len 00uctive health materials

2s.903ian i and cleansing Malerials
00se of Medical gasesI

A
h Level IV llosPita I (Itlonobit ()runtY Government)

rt otttl Fimtncial Statemenlsfor The Year End'ed 3Oh lune 2022

brief explanotiott for this rcvente)

sccllaneous Income

I income shoukl hc cktssifial tts far as lnssible in lhe relctunl cl4rssi4s and miscellaneotts

shoukl be usetl b reutgrrise income rutl elsewhere classified)'

It{etlical/ Clinical Costs

e

29
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0

0

0health activities
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l)

15.

l,' il l

I'(

0
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Kolocha Level lll Hospital (Monabit Qrunty Governmcnt)
Annual Rcport tnd Firtoncial Statements for The Year Endetl 3Uh June 2022

Otlrer medical gases 0 0

X-Ray/Radiology supplies 0 0

Cancer clinic supplies 0 0

Occupational therapy supplies 0 0

Other medical related costs(rnotor vehicle
tuel) 0

Generator fuel/maintenance 0 0
'I'ota I nrcdical/ clinical costs 2,167,027.00 0

(( )ther medica l/clinical related costs refers lo all other co.sts involved in management of the polients
direclly nol analysed above.)

l(r. Employec Costs

(Social contribulion rclotes to expenses incurred by the employer towanls social welfure of Employees)
la

17. Board of Managcment Expenses

I

Salaries, wages, and allowances r 28,000 0

Contributions to pension schemes

Perfonnance and other bonuses

Staffmedical expenses and Insurance cover

Group personal accident itrsurance and WIBA
Social contribution

Other employee asts (specfy)Telephone and airtime

Enrployee costs 128,000 0

Chainnan's l-lonoraria

Sitting allowance

Milcagc

Insurance cxpenses

Induction and trairrirrg

Travel and acconrrnodation allowance

Airtirtre allowances

Total

l. Dcpreciation and Amortization Expense

30

0

21',t22

Kshs

Service gratuity

zt],..u?422...
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)es tior



I

I

l/ Hospital (Monabit County Government)
rl nd Financial Statementslor The l'ear Dnded 3(lt' June 2022

rs nd il{aintcnancc

d Sutrsidics

mes include beneJ'ils such as cash trarx-fcrs.[or unemploymenl or eldcrly in line with ,s4s 12

eral xllenscs

.pl nt and equiprnent

sets

t roperty carried at cost

I :iation a nd
I

204.420 0rty- Buildings'rofe
0242,850:al equiprnent'{.4i.
00r equipment)f+
00ure and fittings,.{ir
00ior{puters and accessories

"lo$r
087,236'vehicle expenses

00
'lai[rtenance of civil works

05J,1.'506rotfl repairs a nd maintenance

evelopment and social workrunity dol'

:du ves and progralnsion

rel edical campsubsidised nt

)isr

( cer

grams

reenlngrc(

a benefit expensesoc

)th 1,626,236grants and subsidies(t/H() t ran.sfe r.s)

1,626,236Iot rl nts and subsidies
6

P

alat

(

rtir d publicity expensesc\dr
20,664SCSexat

jsn 260,000I su lies

rodenticidesdesIsl

3t

Irr

I

l-avel

t9.

Dei

tird

Dci

C

KshsKshs

20201202t

Kshs

202112tJ22

Kshs
rjption

2o?0t?9!
I(shs:)n()ll Kshs

\ zozrtzozz

2020t2021

Kshs

202y2022

Kshs
ption



Iittluclto Level Il/ HosPital (Mo 'aahit CountY Government)

Annual RePorl and Financiul Statcmctrts for The Yeor lindetl 3At' June 2022

T

0

0

ravel and accorntnodatiotr allowance

1,920

58,390.00

0

0
Telephone and mobile Plrone services

Staff training and develoPmcnt
resbodonalotonsS professiubscriptt

SccalIedlll anlp )fi'eeollstled cIdancell (s gaConfere

Research and develoPment expens€s

1'

Rent expenses

5l ,530

416,795

Water and sewerage costs

Skills develoPmenl levies

lntemet exPenses

Audit fees

Bank charges

Consultancy fees

Contracted services

Electricity expenses

Fuel and Lubricants

Insurance

lrgal expenses

Licenses and Pennits

Courier and Postal services

Printing and stationery

liire charges

0

Subscriptions to newspapers Perl
notlccsnla

odical,

Library books/Materials
irres, and

809,299.00

I

Parking charges

Total Gencral Expcnscs

22. Finance (losts

0

(Rornning cosls lhat relale ltt interesl expense on acquisiliott d ttttrt'

qrroti:,1y 1r,it:opialisarittn as per t I'SAS 5: on bctrrowing crtsts should be

cltrrenl assels arul do nttl
inchded under this trole -)

Borrowings (arnortized cost) *

Finance leases (arnortized cost )

lnterest on Bank overdrafls/Gtrarantees
a bankscollrlnerclnfrooan Solln terest

'I'otal finance costs

32



I

I

l

I

t

and Financial Statenrcnlsfor The Year Ended 3Ut' June 2022

on Disposal of Non-Current Assets

Gain On Fair Value Investments

Serviccs Contracts Gains /Losses

l cn l l ,oss

nd Cash llquivalents

,p t, and equiprnent

setsI

not capitalised (sPec tfu)

n sale of assetsI nT

at lair valueln ents

't' n

ive carc contlacts with NlllF
o rehcrrsivc contracts care with NHIF

a Prograttt

d F)xcrlplions

l.oss

rly lant, and equiprnent

I assets

irnrrnt loss

042,295.20ts

call eposlts

I.ewl Ill llospitttl (tllotst bil County Governnrcnl)
,t Reporl

I)el

't{

t)

2

lll

2021v2{r2l

I(Shs

202U2{122

KShs
ptiort

202012021

KShs

202u2022

KShs

2020t202t

KShs

Cr

Ni

t.i

?9?9t?0?!_
I(Shs

202il2422

IiShs
ription

l)

,l

2020/2021

I(Shs
202112022

I(Shs

degrsits ?lccounts

in hand



J
Kuloc.ho Lerel
Annuul Rcport

IV Hospittl (lllanobit Coun$'
and Financitrl Stolements for

Government)
The l'eor Ended 3Uh June 2022

Others(.specry!)- Mobile moneY

Total cash and cash equivalcnts 42,295.20 0

(l'he amount should agree vith the closing and opening balances os included in lhe slalemenl

ofcashflotts)

2? (a). Detailed Analysis of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Sub- total

Grand total

28. Receivables From Exchange 'l'ransactions

a) Current account
21,842.201ts3947048Kenya Commercial bank

19,765.001010269997909Equity Bank, ctc

Sub- total

b) On - call deposits

Kenya Conunercial bartk

Equity Bank - etc

c) Fixed dcposits account

Sub.total

Barrk Name

Sub- total

688
d) Others(.rpccfliy'

cash in hand

Mobile money- Mpesa,
nro

42,295.20

Medical services

Rent receivables

receivable rthi

Other exchange debtors

34



lo .t
lso

of cccivabl€s From Excha

eivablcs From Non-Exchange Transactions

r Jind.s

of eccivatrlcs F rom Non-Excha

(.)

ent allowance

rcceivables

TI

7" of the
total

ol, of
the

total

Comparative
FY

Current
FY

tA-/o
1 I ar

o//oo//oen l- years3et
o//oo//o3et 2-1 years
o//oo//o)vr r v
1l//o/oI'ol rl (e+b)

ct,

S fcrs fro rrr the County GovcnttncntIia
donor lurtdsin<

)r

$(

)rh
rdt

(nrn-axchangedebto
t:lirttt

eq ent allowancer rnpal

I'ot

7. of thc

total
Comp!rrli!e

FY
oI
thc
tot!l

('urrcol FI'

_T

9,',o
,ess than I ycar

%or'o
en l- 2 yearsJet\

o/o/o]ctr en 2-3 years

"hoh
)ve years

/oo/u
otr I a+ t) )(

Ho spilul ( lllo no b it Co u nty Gove rn me n t)
tl Financial Statements lor The l'ear Ended 3Oh June 2022

te lhe expecled crvdit loss mtes for tarious categories of its receivables. The Hospital

lose hov, ECl. v'as an'ived ot in line u'ilh provisions of IPSAS a I .)

e Transactions

refer lo .fitnds expecled vhcre conditions for disburseraenls have been mel

c'l-ransactions

35

u

n

l)es

l)r d ription

,t:cipient ds dt lhe rePorli,lS dote)

Dcsl

2020/2021202112022

I(shsI(shs

2A20n021

KShs

202u2022

KShs

l zozotzozt2$2u2022
KshsKshs

n

t'



I

Kolocha ltlcl
Anuual Rcporl

lll Hospinl (tlanahit County
urtd Finottciol Slotements for

Gowrnment)
The l'car lindetl 3llt' June 2022

30. Invcntorics

I

00Phannaceutical supplies
00Maintenance supplies
00Food supplies
00Linen and clothing supplies

00Cleaning materials supplies
00General supplies
00t-ess: provision for irnpainnent of stocks

00'l'ota I

I
I

36
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Kulacha Level II/ Hospital (Mu$abil County Government)

Anrurul Reporl s nd Financ ial Statenrcnts for The Yeur Euded 3 lutw 2022

The Property, Plant and Equipment for the Hospital has not been valued hence the reason for not having reported balances

r

At July 2021 (current year)

Depreciation

Disposals

lmpainnent

Transfer/adjustment

At 30'h June2022

Net book values

At 30th Jun 2021 (previous)

At 30o Jun 2022 (cunent)

38
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I

Ill Hospilal Manabit County Government)
and Financial Stutemcnts for The l'ur Ended 3Uh June 2022

Financial Statements (Continued)

le Assets-Software

Inl tmcnt Propcrtycs

,,lr'c-r e t l)ropcrt.l, hckl at fair valua, chonge.s in.fair value should go tht'ttugh the slatement of
l{hcrc cost motlc! is electcd, deprecation und impairmenl should not be charged.

I fair value should be evaluated at the end otthe reporling period for changes in
,should disclosc the in<lependenl tuluen, renlal income from the inrvslmenl
(lirect costs altributed tu lhe invcstntenl property. Any charges on the inwstmenl

ar-{ trell as ant' diffiath1t in gla\\if ing this 4sse/ as an inrvslmenl ]rropetl!

th

tangi2

tC

I)eginning of the yea ri\

ItA iitions

-lnlernal developmentlitionsA

I)

c vcar

)osal

A I

ortization and impairmentr\
nning of the yca rA

A oftflation for the period

Ir rairmeat loss

A lr lnd of the year

v

rg of the year'A 'teginnil

lditions

L spos:rls dr rring tlre year

t;

(whcrc invcstment property is at cost)

valuc t)

t.

rpaimrentIr

Icfld ott [e yearA

39

fl
I

tll

perJbntruttce

wlue.), Ho.spital
tf an;' r,,rr1 ,,,,

2020/2021

KShs

2021n022

I(Shs
scri ption

N

2020t2tJ21202il2022

KShsKShs
sf nplrott



Kalacho l-evel llt llospilttl (ltlanobil Counlt Government)
Annuol Repo rt ond Financful Stotementsfo r The Year Ended 3(/'June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

34. Trade and other Payables

35. Refundable Deposits from Customers/Patients

Employee dues

Tlrird-party paJnnents (e. g. unremi I ted payrol I
deductions

Audit fee

Doctors' fee

0Total trade and other payables

"h of
the

total

o/o of
the

Total

Compa
rative

FY
Current

FYcl a nil ts:
o//oo//oUnder otte ear
o//oo//ot-2 ears
o//o

10
o//oOver 3 ears

/oTotal

Medical fees paid in advalce

Credit lacility deposit

Others ( refunds)

Total deposits

Comparative FY

o/o of
the

TotalCurrent [iY

"h of
the

Total
o//oo//oUnder one year

. o//o1-2 years
o//o/o2-3 years
o//oo//oOver 3 years
,r/o

Total

I
I

,{0

Trade payables

2-3 years

Rerrt delnsits

Ageing analYsis:

o//o



o Ill Hospilol (Monabit Coung Government)
ond Financial Statementsfor The Yeor Ended 3Uh June 2022

to th Financial Statements (Continued)

srons

Lease 0bligation

er d lnconrc

I

rlance at thc beginning ofthe yearI
litional ProvisionsA

vision ulilised
)iurge due to discount & tirne value for rnoney(_

al provisions1

ront ProvisionsC

r-Current Provisions

al Provisions

I

-'l

Kshs Kshs

C rent L, :ase obligation

L lease obligatiorrI lg tenr
'l I

rrent P

n{urr
clllorr

enl l)ortion

tal

4t

l

t
1

N

f,cal'e
provision

I(Shs
ll

I(Shs

Ilon us Other

I(Shs
Totrl
I(SIrs

lscril)tion

P

N

1

2020/20212021t2022
I

2020t2021

KShs
ll

I, zozttzozz
KShs

epcriptipn



Kuluchu Lcvel Il/ Ilospik l (Mursohil Cou nly Government)
Annuul Repo rt ond Financiul Stalcmentsfitr The l'ear Dnded 3Uh June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

38 (a) The deferred incomc movement is as follorvs:

39. Borrowings

39. (a1 Breakdown of Long- and Short-'l'crm Borrowings

(Cunent porlion of bort'clling.s are lhose borntv'ittgs that are payable v,ilhin one )ear or lhe nexl

financial yar. Adclitional disc'losures on lerms tlf botowings, nalure of horrou,ings, secrrily and
inlercsl rales should he disclosed).

T

I
I
I
I

Balancc b/f
Additions during the year

Transfers to Capital Iilnd
Transfers to staternent of
financial performance

Other transfers (Sp e c i fy\
Balance C/F

IIIII

000 000IJalance at beginning ofthc pcriod

000 000Extemal bonowings during the ycar

000

(000) (000)

Domestic borrowings during the year

Repayments of extemal borrowings during the year

(000) (000)Repayments of dornestic borrowings during the
year

000 000Balance at end ofthc pcriod

.00 000Current Obligation
000 000Non{urrent Obligation

000Total

42

000

000
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Irl Hospitol (Monabit County Governmanl)
Repo and Financial Stalements lor The Year Eruled 3Ah June 2022

to th

n'ice

e Financial Staternents

Conccssion Arrangem

(Continued)

ents

fit Liatrilitics

clrcntc:; inc hulc banalit.s strch as ca.sh transfet's for unemplolntenl or elderly in line vilh
2. ',l'h , tttt: irtcurre<l lo niligalc ogoitl.tl o certain social risk e.g poterty, age, unemplolnnenl

tha

o

000000f service concession assets recogtriz{lq4gfqEaluc oF r
(000) 000reciation to dateul dAc
000)arryinB amountNr (

000000Se ce co ession liability at beginning of the year

(000)(000)Sc ssion revenue recognizedce conce

000000Ser sion liability at end ofthe yearce conces

I

Llt 000000bencfit sclrcrncIIc
000000rt social benefi( scltenteUtt
000000aned and vulrreratrle bertefil sclrerrteOq

p

000000

g with Disabilitics boncfiteLiPe<

Sct
000000ly social bcnefit sclrcnrc
000llut
000

000

000lor nl

rry sr:ci
I

al bcnellts

000000nt s(rcial bcnefitstC

000000nt social [renefils\ot
000000rl ( tic to tota ls a bove)I'ol
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Kulacho l.avel lll llospitol (Morsubil County Governmenl)
Annual Report and Financiul Stutements frtr The Ycar Ended 3Ut' June 2022

I 6.21 8.00 000

Ad usted for:
000 000Dcpreciation

1,626,236.00 (000)Non-cash grants received
000 000Lnpairment

(000) (000)sal of assetsGains and losses on dis
000000Contribution to provisions
000000Contribution to impairment allowance

Working Ca pital adjustmcnts
(000)(000)Increase in inventory

(000) (000)Increase in receivables
000-1,626,236.00Increase in defened income
000000Increase in payables

000 000Increase in payrnents received in advance

000Net cash flow from opcrating activities

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

42. Cash Generated from Operations

(The total of this sutenrcnt should tie to the ca.sh flotr seclion on nel cash flou's from,/used ln
opemtions

I

41

Sumlus for the year before tax

16,218.00
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Il/ Ilospitol (Manabit County Governmenl)
antl Finonciol Statements lor The Year Etuled 3At' June 2022

to th Financial Statelnents (Continuetl)

nancial Risk ll{anagement

ospital's activities expose it to a variety offinancial risks including credit and liquidity

nd effects of changes in foreign culrency. The company's overall risk management

e focuses on the unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks

imise the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable

ofrisk. The cotnpany does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to elsure thBt

is only extended to customers with an established credit history.

ospital's financial risk tnanagetlent objectives and policies are detailed below:

Credit risk

ital las expostue to credit risk, which is the risk that a corurterparty will be turable to

ounts ill full when due. Crcdit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits

s, as well as trade and other receivables ard available-for-sale financial investments.

ent assesses the credit quality of each crtstotner, taking into account its financial

experience and other factors. Individual risk lirnits are set based on internal or

ent in accordancc with limits set by the directors. The amourts presented in

offinancial position are net ofallowances for doubtftil receivables, estimated byn

pany'S lnanagement based on prior experience and their assessment of the current

ronlnent. The canying atnotult of financial assets recorded in the finaocial

esenting the Hospital's ntaximum exposure to credit risk without laking account

al auy collateral obtained is made up as follows

lt) nrn should tie to lhe indiridurtl elemenls of creclit ri.sk disclosod in the Hospital's

e

e

0 June 202 I (previotts year){t
000000

000
000Rec

lec
rrtn

000000 000000

fronr exchange lransaclions

from -non-exchangebles

bles

000000000 000]au < balances

000000 000000I'ot

\t: June 022 (current ycar)

lcc 000000 000000lcs from exchange transaclions

lcc
rltl

000 000000 000les frorn -non-exchange
ons

000 000000 000lan i balances

0t)0 000(XX}-otr
I

a

..1,

lll

45

N

43.

P

Jhc
(i)

Thc
pa)'

witlr

f

000

.s/i

rl

ll
e

s

o

1

I

Pnst duc I I nrllnircd

Kshs13tu

l'otnl
rnlount

Frrll3'
pcrfornting

[3luBklls

ciiption

rl



,

Itl llospitul (Mdrsnbit CountY
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Annual RePorl

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

The customers under the fully perfonning category are paying their debts as they continue

trading. The credit rist associatea with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for

uncollectible amounts that the colnpany has recognised in the flnancial statements is considered

adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts. The Hospital has significant

concentration of credit rist on amounts due from xxxx The board of management sels the

company,s credit policies and objectives and lays down pararneters within which the various

aspects of credit risk management are operated'

(ii) LiquiditY risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the hospital's board of

management who have buih an appropriate liquidity risk managernent framework for the

,unul"r"n, of the l_lospital's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management

requirements. The Hospital manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts

and actual cash flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the company under nonderivative financial

liabilities by their rlrnaining contractual maturities at the reporting date The amounts disclosed

in the table are the contracttral undiscounted cash flows Balances due within 12 rnonths equal

their carrying balances, as the ilnpact of discounting is not significant'

I
T

At 30 June 2021
000 000

000
000

000

000

000
Trade payables

Currenl portion ot borrowings
000000000000Provisions
000000Deferred incotne

000000

000

000Ernplcyee benefi t obligation 000

000000r}00(n0'I'otal

At 30 June 2022
000000000Trade payablcs
000000

000

Current portion of borrowtlt gs

000000000000Provrstons
000 000

000000

000

000

000

000

Deferred incotne

000000000000'I'otal
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I Il/ Ilospilol (Monahit County Governmcnl)

IR and Finunciol Stulemen8 for The Year Etuled 3Ut' Junc 2022

tot Financial Statenrents (Continued)

Market risk

ospital has put in place an intbmal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by

osplta

rng

lon
and

an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its intemal

operational controls. Market risk is the risk arising frorn changes in market

, such as interest rate, equity prices and foreign exchange rates which will affect the

pan1,'. p"rror,.c Deparhnent is responsible for the development of detailed risk

nt policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and fusk Maltagetlralt

arrd for the day-to-day implenrentation of those policies. Tltere has beetl uo change

tal's exposure to tnarket risks or the way it manages and measues the risk.
ttee)

I lospi

F

ospita lras transactional currency exposures. Such exposttre arises through purchases of
and vices that are done iu currettcies other than the local currellcy. Invoices

rnat in lbreign currencies are paid after 30 days fiotn the date of the invoice and

the tirne of paynent is done using the prevailing exchange rate. The carrying

re llospital's foreigr currency denorninated monetary assets aud monetary

es at e end of the reporting period are as follows

osprt lnanages foreign exchange risk from futtue commercial transactiqns and

sed assets and liabilities by projecting expectcd sales proceeds and matching the same

ed paynents

oreign currency risk

tof

0 .lu ne o22'tAr,
000 000000F I n investments, cash, debtorsial

itLial rtres

000000 000I'rar d other payablese {rn

Bor 000000

000

000

000 000\,let ioreign currency asset/ (l i u b i I i t.y)

he

47

I
I

;i5
,,4"]

I)
's income or the value of its holding of financial instmments. The objective of market

management is lo rnanage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,

optirnising the retunt. Overall responsibility for managing market risk rests with the

and Risk Managetnent Conlnittee.

('
to tl

r)

i0n

Thc
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T
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Total
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Kulocho La'el Il' IlosPilol (Mo noh it Cou ntY G overnmcnt)
,

rt antl Financial Stalements lttr Thc Yeor Ended 3Ah June 2022Annual Repo

Notes to the Financiat Statements (Continued)

Management of interest rate risk

To mauage thc interest rate risk, managernent has endeavoured to bank with institutions that

oftbr favourablc illterest rates

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table deuronstrates the effect on the cornpany's statement of financial

performance on applying the sensitivity for a reasonable possible change in the exchange rate

of tlre tlree main transaction currencies, with all otlrer variables held constant' The reverse

would also occur if the Kenya Shilling appreciated with all other variable s held constant'

b) Interest rate rirk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the llospital's financial condition may be adversely affected as

a result of changes in interest rate lcvcls. The cornpany's interest rate risk arises from bank

deposits. This exposes the company to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk

exposure arises rnainty from interest rate movements on the company's deposiS'

At30June 2022
000000

Financial assets caslr, debtorsinvestrnetrts

Liabilities
000000000

Trade and other bles
000000000Borrowin S

000000000Net forei culren asset/ liabilt

2021 (previous ycar)
000 000

000000
to9'o
100

Euro
USD

cll r2022 current
00000010.Etro
00000010,USD

48

000
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efve 000 000

000 000

000 000

000 000

rTorvl gs 000 000
all bank balances (000) (000)

(cx sr cnslr ond ca.sh equivalents) 000 000

00% 000a

1{

IV Hospital (Mtrcabit Coungt Govemment)
a nd Finonciol Slalemcnts or The Year Ended 3Ah June 2022

th l;inancial Statements (Continued)

tivity na lysis

ospital
is Thi

analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting a sensitivity
s involves detennining the impact on profit or loss of defined rarc shifts. The

vity analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all other variables, in particular foreigrr
ge rales, remain constant. The analysis has been perfonned on the same basis as the

1',ear figures, the sensitivitl, anarysis indicates the impact on the statement
ance if current floating interest rates increase./decrease by one percentage

a decrease/increa se of KShs xxx (2021: KShs xxx). A rate increase/decrease of 5 
o/o

ult in a decrease/increase in surplus of KShs xxx (2022_ KShs )<xx)

Capital Risk Management
ec(ive of the Hospitals capitar risk rnanagement is to safeguard the Hospita|s
o co.ti.ue as a going concem. The Hospital capital stnrcture comprises of the

firnds
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Kolacho Levcl IV HosPitol (Itla 'riah it Co u nlY G overn me nl)
3Ut' June 2022

Annuul RePort und Finoncial Statemcnts li)r The Year Endctl

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

44. Related PartY Balances

Nature of related party relationships

Entities and other parties related to the Hospital include those parties who have the ability to

exercise coutrol or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions'

Related parties include manaSement personnel, their associates, and close family mernbers'

no<CounrycovernmentrstheprincipalshareholderofrheHospital.holdingl}oYooftheHospial,s

equity interest. The National covernment ofKenya has provided full guarantees to all long-term lenders

of the Hospital, both domestic and external' The related parties include:

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

The National Govemment;

The County Governrnent;

Board of Directors;

Key Management

Transections with related par.tics

Sen'ices offerr:d to rea) lnlcd grnrlics

000 000
Services to xxx

000000Sales of services io xxx

000Total

b) Grants from the Government
000000Grants from CountY Government
000

000

o00

000Donations in kind

Grants from the Nation al Govemment Entities

000-I'otnl

000000
Erpenses incu rred on be

Payments of salaries an d rvages lbr xxx emPloYees

c) half of related PartY

000000Payments for goods and servtces for xxx
o0{)00t)'l'otal

d) Key managem€nt conrPensation

50
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Il/ Ilospitttl (It{unobit County Government)
rl ond Finoncial Stolenrcnts r The Year Ended 3Ah June 2022

t Information

(l/he on orgo,tisotiot, operates in diferent geogmphical regions or in departmenfs, ,lP&{S /8
()ll s( enlal rlporling requires on Hospital b present segmental information of each geogmphic
regto or deportncnt b cnoble usen understand the Hospital's perfornnnce and allocotion of
,tsou s b dil{ercnt segments)

onti nt Liabilitics

o lcgal cases instittttcd ugaitt.\l tha Hospitol and none carriedJi.om prior years

l(--onrmitments

000

tal conut,itnrcnts ore co itnrcttts lo he carried oul in the nexl .financial vear and are
ordonce v'ith IPSAS 17. Onpital comrnitments n ay be tlrose that have been authorised

r<l t at the end of the year had not been contracled or those already contmcled.for and

1', after the Reporting Period
rnaterial adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

Directr )rs'emoluments 000 000

Conrpr nsation to the medical Sup 000 000

Compr nsation to key management 000 000

Total 000 000

LlC rt case xxx against the company 000 000

Ili k guari []tees in favour of subsidiary 000 000

Kshs

000

(':

Tr

Tht

!
19C r(

Capi

Kshs

000

At orisctl Iror 000 000
Au orised And Contracted For 000 000
't0 I 000

Lnti te and llolding Hospital

5l

4s.
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Kalacha l.evel Il/ Ilospilat (Monobit Coanty Government)

Annuul Reporl anil Financittl Slutements for Thc Ycur Ended 3Uh Junc 2022

,
,

The Hospital is a State Corporatiol/ or a Serni- Autonomous Govemment Agency under the

Deparfinent of Health witlt its ultimate parent being the County Government of Marsabit.

50. Currency
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs) and all values are rounded ofl'

to the nearest shilling

I

I

I

I

I

I

5?



I

,

I

x

A

I

n
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ft rl arul Fintncial Statemenls for The l'ear Ended 3Ah June 2022

A ntliccs

pendix I : Progress on Follow Up of Auditor Recommendations

o g is the surnmary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management
cllts were provided to the auditor. We have norninated focal persons to resolve the

US ISS as shown below rvith the associated time frarne within which we expect the
to resolved

tes:

same reference numbers as contained in the extemal audit report

Obtain ths "lssue/Observation" and 'lnanagernent comments", required above, from the

final extemal audit report that is signed by Management.

Before approving the report, discuss the lirneframe with the appointed Foca.l Point
persons within your Itospital responsible the for irnplementation of each issue.

Indicate the status of "Resolved" or "Not Resolved" by the date of submitting this

rcport !o National Treasury.

ting o fficcr

53
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(iii)
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Koluchu Level IV Hospital (Marsobit Couttg,Government)
Anruml Report tnd Finoncial Statements for The Year Ended 3Oh June 2022

Appendix Il: Projects Implemented by The Hospital

Projects

Projects implemented by the Hospital Funded by development partners

Status of Projects completion

(Summarise rhe stahrs of project completion at the end of each quarler, i.e. lotal costs inctrred, stoge which the proiect is etc)

I

1

3
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Kolacho Level Il/ Hospital (Manabit County Government)
Anrutal Report rnd Financiol Stotementtfor The Year Ended 3(/h lune 2022

Appendix III: Inter-Hospital Confirmation Letter

flnsert yo u r Letterheo d J

finsert name of beneficiary HospitalJ
finsert Addressl

Tlte [insert SCiSAGA,'Fund name here] wishes to confirm the arnounts disbursed to you as at 30ft June 20)O( as indicated in the table below.
Please compare the amounts disbursed to you with the amounts you received and populate the colunn E in the table belorv Please sign and starnp
this request in the space provided and reh.rn it to us.

Reference
Number

Date
Disbursed

Amount Received
by [beneficiary
Hospitall
(KShs) as at 30th

Arnounts Disbursed SC/SAGA/Fund

Recurrent (A) Developrnent (B)

June 20XX

KShs

Inter-
Ministerial (C)

Total
(D):(A+B+C)

Differences
(KShs)
(F)=(D-E)

Total

In confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as ofthe date indicated

Head of Accounts Department of the beneficiary

x.,n. ...K1--*r"1,* 6*{lx**^q"...

I
55

(lonfirmation of rmorrnts reccivcd by IInsert nnme of bcneficiary Hospitall as at 30rh .Iune 20XX

as at 30th June 20XX

..Date erldY=,+Sign....

(

-
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Kalacha Level IV Hospitnl (Monobit County Government)
Annual Rqtortond Financlal Stutementslor The Year Ended 3Oh June 2022

Appendix IV Reporting of Climate Relevant Expenditures

Q2
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